
Pre-bid Queries Responses: RFP for Onboarding of Feedback Collection Agency for States’ Startup Ranking 2020 
 

# Query Section in RFP Details in RFP Invest India Response/Clarification 

1 

As a Market Research organization, 
we do not have the set 
up/provision of call centre. We 
request you to consider the option 
of outsourcing the Call Centre 
process facility/ infrastructure in 
Delhi/NCR. 
  

Prequalification 
Criteria 

e) The Bidder should have call 
Centre process facility/ 
infrastructure in Delhi/NCR. 
(Undertaking by the authorized 
signatory on company’s 
letterhead)- 

Outsourcing will be allowed for the purpose of the RFP 
but only with the prior approval of Invest India with the 
liability of the deliverables resting on the bidder.  
  

2 

Whether consortium/outsourcing 
for Call Centre services will be 
allowed and what documentation 
will be required, if allowed? 

Prequalification 
Criteria 

k)The Bidder/Group Company/ 
Subsidiary/ Parental Company 
providing BPO/Call Centre 
services must have registered 
itself with Department of 
Telecommunication (DoT)/ 
TRAI. (Copy of DOT/TRAI 
Certificate/License for the 
proposed site) 

Outsourcing will be allowed for the purpose of the RFP 
but only with the prior approval of Invest India with the 
liability of the deliverables resting on the bidder.  
 
Bids in consortium will be allowed for the purpose of 
this RFP. Please refer to the Corrigendum for further 
details on consortium services.  

3 

We request you to consider 
outsourcing the Call Centre 
process facility/ infrastructure in 
Delhi/NCR. Nielsen partners with a 
no. of agencies for outbound 
calling/CATI interviews in regional 
languages. Please let us know 
whether experience of the agency 
Nielsen will partner with for the 
study will suffice. 

17. Relevance 
Experience 

Experience in Outbound calling 
in regional languages (other 
than English & Hindi) 

Outsourcing will be allowed for the purpose of the RFP 
but only with the prior approval of Invest India with the 
liability of the deliverables resting on the bidder.  
 



# Query Section in RFP Details in RFP Invest India Response/Clarification 

4 

Please let us know whether this 
Cap can be extended 
beyond/above INR 40,00,000/-, 
since multiple mode of 
interviews/connecting with the 
respondents is required. 

18. Financial 
Evaluation 

All Financial Proposals must be 
capped below ₹40,00,000/- (all 
inclusive) for a period of 
approximately 3 months. 

The financial proposal has been capped below 
₹40,00,000/- (all inclusive) for a period of 
approximately 3 months basis Invest India’s prior 
experience with the feedback collection process in 
previous editions of States’ Startup Ranking.  

5 
What sort of analysis is required 
for the report? Is it possible to 
share the previous years report? 

5.2 Scope of Work 
and Deliverables 

The business services that shall 
be provided by the selected 
Feedback Collection Agency can 
be broadly categorized as: 
o Making outbound phone calls 
o Creating and sharing online 
questionnaires for collecting 
beneficiary responses 
o Reporting and sharing 
responses collected through 
outbound calls and online 
questionnaires. 
o Comprehensive data analysis 
for all the responses 

To understand the type of analysis required and 
assessment process, please refer to Chapter 4.4 of the 
National Report of States’ Startup Ranking 2019 on the 
following link: 
https://www.startupindia.gov.in/content/dam/invest-
india/compendium/National_Report_09092020-
Final.pdf 

6 What is the expected duration of 
the questionnaire in minutes? 

5.2 Scope of Work 
and Deliverables - Entire questionnaire is expected to take between 3-5 

minutes per respondent.  



# Query Section in RFP Details in RFP Invest India Response/Clarification 

7 

As the study has been done in the 
previous years, will the agency has 
to compare the findings with the 
previous rounds reports? 

5.2 Scope of Work 
and Deliverables - No, this is not a requirement.  

8 
What is approximate total number 
of respondents/ sample size that 
needs to be covered in the study? 

5.2 Scope of Work 
and Deliverables - 

The sample size of respondents will be dependent on 
submissions by State Governments. In the previous 
edition, the number of respondents was 6000.  

9 The target respondents will be the 
Manager/ Owner level? 

5.2 Scope of Work 
and Deliverables - Yes, founders or lead representatives of startups would 

be the target respondents.  

10 

Will the database be provided by 
the Invest India? If yes, what will 
be the approximate size of the 
database? Will the database have 
the email IDs and phone numbers 
of the target respondents ? 

5.2 Scope of Work 
and Deliverables - 

Yes, the database would be provided by Invest India. 
The sample size of respondents will be dependent on 
submissions by State Governments. In the previous 
edition, the number of respondents was 6000. The 
database will contain phone numbers and email 
addresses.  



# Query Section in RFP Details in RFP Invest India Response/Clarification 

11 

The collection of primary data 
using web-platform and 
telephonic interviews will be 
separate process all together 
(applicable for complete the 
interviews over the calls 
seperately and complete the 
interviews using web platform 
seperately) or will have to make 
the outbound calls to get an 
appointment and then using the 
web platform link for the feedback 
? 

5.2 Scope of Work 
and Deliverables - 

The process of telephonic and online feedback 
collection is expected to run parallelly, the respondents 
should have the option to either submit their responses 
on the web-platform or through telephonic interview.  
The agency is expected to make outbound calls to 
ensure participation as per minimum requirements of 
the framework.  

12 
Is translation/back-translation 
activity needs to be done by the 
agency? 

5.2.1 Language 
Supported 

The team should be able to 
collect feedback in at least the 
following languages: English, 
Hindi, 
Tamil, Telugu, Malayalam, 
Marathi, Bengali, Urdu, 
Kannada, Odia, Gujarati. 

No, translation/back-translation activity is not a 
requirement from the agency.  

13 

Request you to keep provision for 
at least 30% advance as any 
research requires a set-up cost and 
without advance it will not be 
possible to start the study. 

5.6 Payment 
Terms 

No advance will be given to the 
vendor. No change under this clause.  

14 

Whether Invest India will consider 
changing the minimum 
educational qualification of the 
team members ? 

5.7 Minimum 
Educational 
Qualification 

Outbound Calling and Online 
Feedback Collection 

 
Please refer to the Corrigendum for changes.  
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15 

If we are able to meet the number 
through our associate agencies 
collaborating with us on project, 
will that be considered?? 

Pre-Qualification 
Checklist 

Do you have a dedicated 
manpower size of at least 200 
Full Time equivalent people?  

 
 
In case of a consortium the same shall be considered. 
Please refer to the Corrigendum for Consortium rules.  
 

16 

Will engaging a call centre 
operations partner under 
consortium mechanism be 
allowed?? 

Pre-Qualification 
Checklist 

Do you have call centre process 
facility/infrastructure in 
Delhi/NCR? 

Bids in consortium will be allowed for the purpose of 
this RFP. Please refer to the Corrigendum for further 
details on consortium services.  
 

17 

We, the undersigned, request you 
to clarify whether NSIC certified 
firms are exempted from  bid 
processing fee. 
  
We are a NSIC certified firm and 
exempted from EMDs required for 
Government sector tenders. 
 

- - 

EMD exemptions will be provided as per government 
guidelines. Each bidder is required to submit a bid 
security declaration in lieu of EMD. Additionally, each 
bidder is required to submit a non-refundable bid 
processing fees of INR 10,000+18% GST = INR 11,800. 

18 

We do not have 200 employees 
employed at Verace. Our total no, 
of Telacallers is 15. Please let me 
know if we are still eligible to 
submit the RFQ. 

Pre-Qualification 
Checklist 

Do you have a dedicated 
manpower size of at least 200 
Full Time equivalent people? 

No change in this clause.    
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19 

Our last year revenue did not 
exceed 2 cr. In fact, given the 
pandemic our revenues were 
around 40 lacs. Please let me 
know if we are still eligible to 
submit the RFQ. 

Pre-Qualification 
Checklist 

Do you have a minimum turnover 
of Rs.2 crores per annum in two 
of last three financial years? 
*[DPIIT Recognized Startups are 
exempt from this criterion] 

 
 
Please refer to the corrigendum for changes.  
 

 
 
 

 


